

Student Services Council Meeting May 3, 2017 • 9:00 AM Room 2314

MINUTES

Cor	nmittee Members Present				
	Stacey Bartlett	x	Sandra Hamilton Slane		Sheree Whaley
x	Sharon Brisolara	х	Tim Johnston	x	Leann Williams
х	Tina Duenas	х	Becky McCall	х	Jenna Barry Highfield - Guest
x	Nadia Elwood		Kevin O'Rorke		

CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by Tim at 9:10 a.m.

1. Approval of Minutes

It was moved by Nadia and seconded by Sharon to approve the Student Services Council April 19, 2017 minutes with minor edits presented by Nadia.

- 2. Accreditation
 - a) Review Draft

Looking for errors/omissions. Most current version should be posted, but if not contact Will. Tina will follow up to ensure revisions were included. Getting close to final opportunity to provide feedback. Believe draft will go to the Board in June.

- b) ACCJC Training Email from Kevin to complete the training.
- 3. Board Policy / Administrative Procedure Review Second Reading

Changes Sharon submitted will be entered by Natalie. Compiling additional suggestions/changes from other committees. Propose to send any additional comments via email. Will have them ready for next College Council meeting so they have a clean copy to review.

BP/AP 4111	Posthumous Degrees (new, not legally required)
BP/AP 4240	Academic Renewal (updated BP, new AP, legally required)
BP 4250	Probation, Dismissal and Readmission (updated, legally required)
AP 4250	Probation (new AP, legally required)
 Split out 	it and newly organized to separate Probation from AP 4255 Dismissal and Readmission, but

doesn't change how college is doing it.

AP 4255 Dismissal and Readmission (new AP, legally required)

BP/AP 5015 Residence Determination (new BP/AP, legally required)

AP 5031 Instructional Materials Fees (new, legally required)

Can we integrate material fee information for students into course information? There is language
on what should be included. There are equipment expenses and other additional costs, such as
knives for culinary program, digital cameras for photography, and gear for welding courses that
are not listed as part of a course fee, and can therefore be unexpected expenses associated with
certain courses. Suggestion to strengthen the language/descriptions. Would it also be possible to
be more proactive and ask deans from departments to address making material fees explicit with
faculty and provide disclosures regarding additional expenses for students?

BP/AP 5035 Withholding of Student Records (review and update; no changes)

- BP/AP 5040 Student Records, Directory Information (review and update)
- AP 5045 Student Records Challenging Content and Access Log (new, legally required)

Motion to approve as revised by Becky. Unanimously approved.

4. Review Student Comments, Identify Trends and methods to address challenges As part of Accreditation, the college must demonstrate documentation of processing of student concerns/feedback. Updated concern process and the form, and it is now posted in multiple locations on the web site for student access, and will have scheduled meetings to review. If other departments have saved student comment forms over the year they should submit for them to be added to the database.

In addition to a quarterly review between offices, should there be an ombudsman to oversee and review for trends? Comment regarding including Research Dept., so that feedback can be aggregated. Maybe once a semester provide tracking information to Research for content analysis. Then review in meetings to discuss any themes. Concern expressed regarding only including comments from completed forms, because while these may represent issues that have risen to a certain point, other themes might be missed. Gathering of information can inform needed training/changes. Can use feedback not only for disciplinarian actions, but rather, also for staff growth and awareness. Use is it as a positive tool. Question on how to create a safe space for student communication/feedback and not squelch anyone's voice. This can be a venue for students to be heard. College will do what is possible to resolve concerns, but some situations may not allow for a resolution that satisfies the student. When concern was raising about staff sharing information, it was suggested that staff are usually on board with incident reporting and want an opportunity to let their supervisor know they had an upset/angry student and it gives them the chance to get ahead of it. Conclusion that we also keep notes on situations that don't require or result in a feedback form being completed. Desire for more uniform satisfaction loop for students that is always available, and then includes a feedback loop to check back in with students to see how it was resolved. Idea to have a more universal instrument to survey student experiences. A need to offer the Student Feedback form more often to students. Tim and Jenna will be meeting regarding a standardized message.

Procedure discussed and suggestion included departments keeping their own tracking logs and/or creating a folder that is secure with a password for Student Services Council members that is a master integrated tracking log for only Deans/Directors to access. The Deans/Directors can add feedback from department logs to the master integrated log.

 Student Services Building – Departments George had asked for more information from the council about department needs. They are going to be interviewing architects. One Stop Shop Student Services Building. Options to use shell of 100 building or tear it down and start from scratch. One version is that the 100 building torn down and 2200 down too. All parking lots would be redone.

General ideas that are percolating about the function of buildings as discussed in the previous meeting:

- One Stop Shop Transactional new/updated 100 Building
- More experiential 2300 building
- More admin duties in 2000 & 2100 buildings

One of Tina's idea was for the Bookstore to move to new 100 building. Turn bookstore into the coffee shop/café that would also sell t-shirts, non-book items. Bookstore would only sell books. Another suggestion from the committee is to move Health and Wellness to new Student Services building. Options to having an entrance to some areas ie Veterans, College Connections, have alternative separate entrances. Which direction would staff prefer, welcoming and open areas versus security/safety provisions (ie glass/counter barriers), private meeting spaces for confidentiality? General consensus of the council is to have a more open area that includes a Welcome Center, kiosk ideas, and check-ins, but then have stages/levels of security. Emergency evacuations/lock downs also need to inform design.

Student Services Building might include:

- o Welcome Center
- o Assessment
- o A&R
- o Financial Aid
- Counseling (discussion though regarding embedded counselors for particular programs, and having space for a counselor in other areas for once to two times a week.)
- o Student Success Center
- o Transfer Center
- o Community Center (office)- CalWORKs, SMART Center, Health & Human Services
- Bookstore upstairs if in the 100 building, not to displace)
- o Health Center (option of an additional entrance)
- Snack/Coffee Kiosk
- Meeting Rooms (2) w/Kitchenettes Capacity 40 people
- Enrollment Services

Offices/Programs To Be Determined:

- Veteran's Affairs/Center Counseling, Resource Center, Available for hang out, private/decompressing spaces, meeting space. Survey of vets and what they want in a center.
- SCI*FI pod space, meeting area, surrounded by offices of specialists counselors
- ACE/BOLD/Adult Re-entry programs
- Questions regarding future of Student Employment (Could it live in HR) Career Pathways (EWD?) Located where?
- o Innovation/Grants/Dual Enrollment/Research plan for them to all be in one building
- President's Office Board Room
- o Administrative Services
- HR moved to 2100 Interview Rooms, Testing Rooms
- Business Office moved to 2100
- Student Services Administration ?

Block of time 11 - 12 pm the Enrollment Services Coordinators Committee is meeting tomorrow in the Board Room. Inviting Student Service Council to join the meeting to continue the conversation and it will include Andy Fields from Tehama campus.

- 6. Health Fee Procedure second consideration Hold For Next Meeting
- 7. Staff Scheduling Hold for Next Meeting
- 8. Integrated Planning (Equity, BSI, SSSP-Credit) Hold for Next Meeting
 - a) Update
 - b) May 23 Chancellor's Office visit
- 9. Area Updates
- 10. Other / Announcements

Parking Lot:

Measure H / Student Services Building - Elements for the Main Campus and Tehama Campus https://www.nytimes.com/2017/01/31/education/edlife/colleges-discover-rural-student.html? r=0 Master Events Calendar **Concurrent Enrollment Fees** "Branding" Hobsons – second consideration (For example: <u>http://orangesuccess.syr.edu/)</u> Grant – update Hobsons Starfish update Probation programming **Hiring process** Marketing plan / marketing Probation intervention update Website Integrated Planning **Program Review** SARS Anywhere Regroup Common assessment Dub labs app FAQ

NEXT MEETING

The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, May 17, 2017 at 9:00 a.m. in room 2314.

Recorded by: Michelle Fairchild, Administrative Secretary, Enrollment Services

IP Full Plan, Q 4

1.6

- 4. How and how often will you evaluate progress toward meeting your student success goals for both credit and noncredit students? You could analyze milestones, momentum points, leading indicators, or any other metric you find appropriate for your college. (100 words max)
 - Each initiative has developed an evaluation/assessment plan and will continue to gather data to support that plan. Examples are included in the appendix to this plan.
 - Across plans, we intend to examine the following outcomes and indicators.
 - The Research Committee, which includes representatives from all three plans, IT, Research and Planning, and the Dean of Institutional Effectiveness, will also oversee and commit to collecting data related to the indicators/measures chosen. The committee meets monthly but can dedicate one meeting quarterly to review of evaluation progress on the integrated plan.

Goal	SSP	Equity	BSI	Indicator/Measure
1.Decrease achievement gap	x	x	x	Student populations experiencing disproportionate impact Foster youth, African American and multi-racial students and students with disabilities will experience improved course success in credit courses as noted by a 50% decrease in the disparity gap between their success rates and average student success.
				Indicator around completing matric steps? Around decreasing gaps in basic skills courses (also in #5 below)
2.Improve assessment procedures and address barriers to access	x	x	x	Student representatives of different equity populations will increasingly report experiencing a positive, welcoming environment, a 5% increase by 2018. Low income students and students from other equity populations
				completing matric steps and attending Gateway to College will enroll in a community college (including Shasta College) or 4 year college after graduating from Gateway to College with rates increasing by
				Enrollment of students with disabilities, former and current foster youth, and veterans will increase by 5% for each population by 2018. The percentage of students who receive their first financial disbursements after September will decrease by 20%.
				Indicator around multiple measures

Goal	SSP	Equity	BSI	Indicator/Measure
3. Increase opportunities for professional learning that will increase faculty/staff responsiveness to the needs of diverse groups of students		x	x	 Staff will access disaggregated data on all equity populations during the reflection phase of the SLO cycle and will use data to inform, revise, or guide academic and other division/ department planning processes. Faculty in three divisions integrate best practices for serving equity populations of interest into annual area plans. [or Faculty/divisions revise or expand course or program curricula to be more inclusive of cultural diversity and/or equity population related themes and resources.] Success rates of students in classes served by Supplemental Instructor, a co-requisite support course, or multiple Equity Office services will exceed the success rate of students in comparison courses who do not receive such resources. The percentage of faculty reporting use of newly acquired pedagogical practices supported by a Professional Development training provided on
4. Increase course and degree/ certificate completion and persistence through enhanced services.	X	x	X	 campus or supported by the college will increase to 20%. Students with disabilities, former and current foster youth, and veterans who enroll in the fall of 2016 will persist fall to spring and fall to fall at rates within 3 percentage points of average persistence rates for each period. Course retention and completion/success rates for all students in college success courses as well as foster youth, African American, multi-racial students, and students with disabilities will increase by%. Increase the number and percentage of students from equity populations who have declared a certificate goal and earn a certificate within 4 years by 15% by August 2019. Indicator around students receiving early alerts, proactive counseling calls, enhanced ed plans.

1

Goal	SSP	Equity	BSI	Indicator/Measure
5.Increase rates of throughput to transfer level course success and rates of transfer	x	x	x	Course success rates of students enrolled in basic skills English and basic skills Math courses will increase by 5 percentage points by 2019.
				Increase the number and percentage of students from equity populations who have declared a degree and earn a degree by 15% by August 2019
				The number and percentage of students from equity populations completing degree and/or credential applicable English/math courses who began their studies in basic skills English/math courses or ESL courses will increase by 10 percentage points by 2020.
				Students enrolled in basic skills classes who have participated in interventions (Math Camp, Supplemental Instruction) will increase their persistence rates from fall to spring and fall to fall by 5% by 2018.
				The number and percentage of students from target equity populations who declare (and take courses towards) an associate degree for transfer will increase 5 percentage points by 2019.
				The number and percentage of students from target equity populations who transfer to a four year college or university will increase by 2%.

1.

SS/Other	TD	BM	SB	Grouping	Departments / Areas	POC	Employees / Student Capacity
SS	2300	2100	SS Admin/ 700	4	VP Student Services	Kevin O'Rorke	2
SS	New 100 / Downtown	Downtown	Downtown	2	CalWORKs	Nadia Elwood	
SS	2000	New 100			Support Services	Sandra Hamilton Slane	1
SS	2000	New 100			EOPS	Sandra Hamilton Slane	4
SS	2000	New 100		3	CARE	Sandra Hamilton Slane	1
SS	2000	2000		3	DSPS .	Sandra Hamilton Slane	8
SS	2000	2000			TRIO	Sue Huizinga	7
SS	2000	New 100		- and the second s	Foster Kinship / SCI*FI	Bob DePaul	2
SS	2000	New 100		3	College to Career	Amber Perez	2
SS	Now 100	New 100	SS Center /new building / other admin.		Access & Equity	Sharon Brisolara	3
SS	New 100 2000	New 100	and the second se	2	Center for Equity & Inclusion	Sharon Brisolara	1-2 (35-50 Capacity)
SS	New 100	New 100			Veterans Center	Sharon Brisolara	3 (20 Capacity)
SS	New 100	New 100			Enrollment Services	Tim Johnston	5 (20 Capacity)
SS	New 100	New 100			Assessment	Tim Johnston	3
SS	New 100	2000			Career & Transfer Center	Daniel Valdivia	3
SS	New 100	New 100	SS Admin/ 700	the second s	Counseling	Tim Johnston	25
SS	New 100	New 100			Financial Aid (Blended w/ A&R)	Becky McCall	11
SS	New 100	New 100			Veterans Services	Becky McCall	1
SS	New 100	New 100	SS Admin/ 700		Admissions & Records (Blended w/ FA)	Leann Williams	14
SS	New 100	New 100	SS Admin/ 700		Student Success Center / FYE Center	Tim Johnston	3
SS	New 100	2000	SS Admin/ 700	2	Student Employment	Leann Williams	2
SS	2300	2000	SS Admin/ 700	4	Student Life	Tina Duenas	3 - 5 / (11 Capacity)
SS	2300	2000	SS Admin/ 700 / Other admin.	4	Global Education Center	Tina Duenas	2 / (15-20 Capacity)
SS	2300	2000	SS Center 2000	4	Student Senate	Tina Duenas	0 / (30-33 Capacity)
SS	3000	3000	3000 or new		Student Housing (eventual new build?)	Nicholas Webb	14 / (126 Capacity)
SS	2300	2000	SS Center 2000	4	Club Room	Tina Duenas	0 / (20-25 Capacity)
SS	New 100	New 100	All Buildings	2	Conference Room(s) - (2)	N/A	
SS	New 100	New 100	SS Admin / 100 & SS Center	1	Reception / Welcome Area	N/A	
SS	2300	New 100	SS Center 2000	4	Coffee Shop / Café	N/A	
SS	New 100		Other Admin. & SS Admin.	2	Staff Lounge w/ kitchen	N/A	
SS	New 100		Single/family/ gender neutral	ALL	Ample Restrooms	N/A	
Other	500	2100	Instruct. Building		ACSS	Stacey Bartlett	
Other	2100	2100	Other Admin. 100	7	Administrative Services	Morris Rodrigue	3
Other	New CTE	2100			BAITS	Michael Sloan	
Other	New CTE	2000	Instruct. Building		Bistro (*Mike is okay with this)	Mike Mari	
Other	2100		Other Admin. 100	6	Business Office	Jill Ault	9 / (12 capacity)?
Other			Other Admin / Sep.		Campus Safety/RPD (Move CIS to new CTE)	Lonnie Seay	
Other	2100	2100	Library	the second se	Dual Enrollment	Theresa Doyle	3
Other	2100	the second s	Other Admin. 100		EWD	Eva Jimenez	7?
Other	2100	and the second se	Other Admin. 100	8	Extended Education	Andrew Fields	
Other Other	2000 Downtown	2000 As is	SS Center 2000		Food Services	Denise Axtell	
Other	2100	As is 2100	Downtown Other Admin. 100		HSUP Human Resources	Kathy Royce Laura Benson	
Other	700	700	Other Admin. 100 Other Admin. 100 or Library	0	Information & Technology	James Crandall	
Other	200	200	200 (Expanded)		Librany Sanvicas	Will Braitbach	+
Other	200		Other Admin. 100	7	Library Services Office of Instruction	Will Breitbach Morris Rodrigue	
Other	1800	1800	Instruct. Building		PEAT	Mike Mari	
Other	2700	2700	2700?		Physical Plant	George Estrada	
Other	900?	2100	and the second se		SLAM	Frank Nigro	
Other	2100	2100		7	President's Office	Joe Wyse	
Other	2100				Foundation	Scott Thompson	
Other	700	2000	Library		Learning Resource Center	Teresa Doyle	
Other	2100		Other Admin. 100	5	Research	Kate Mahar	5 / (8 Capacity)
Other	New 100	2000	SS Center 2000	2	Health & Wellness	Debbie Goodman	
Other	2100	2100	Other Admin. 100		Marketing & Public Relations	Peter Griggs	
Other	2100	2100	Other Admin. 100	5	Grants Office	Amy Webb	1
Other	2100	2100	Library	5	Innovation	Theresa Markword	1
Other	200	200	Instruct. Building		Gateway to College	Nancy Berkey	

Posthumous Degrees

AP 4111

Reference:

The posthumous degree is conferred on students who, at the time of death, have completed at least the current residency requirement for an Associate Degree at Shasta College and minimum cumulative GPA of 2.0.

Procedure

The process for identifying and considering candidates for the award of posthumous Associate degrees shall be:

- A formal request may be initiated by any of the following: a family member, a
 faculty/staff member, a dean, or a fellow student. If the request is not made by a family
 member, the family should be contacted and found to be receptive to the possible
 award. The request must be submitted in writing within two semesters following the
 student's death and must be accompanied by a copy of the student's death notification
 (i.e., death certificate, newspaper article, funeral service program). The request should
 be submitted to the Associate Superintendent/Vice President of Student Services or
 designee.
- The Associate Superintendent/Vice President of Student Services will be responsible for reviewing the student's academic record, whether the specified criteria are met, and forwarding the request to the Superintendent/President.
- 3. The Superintendent/President will then recommend to the Board of Trustees that the student receive the posthumous Associate degree. This must be completed no later than April of every year to ensure that the student will have their name appear in the upcoming commencement program.
- 4. The Associate Superintendent/Vice President of Student Services notifies the individual who made the request of the Board of Trustees decision. If approved, an invitation will be made to the family to attend the College's commencement ceremony held at the end of the spring semester each year.
- 5. Upon Board approval, the Associate Superintendent/Vice President of Student Services on behalf of the student, completes an Application for Graduation petition and sends the application, the student death notification and request to the Admissions & Records for the student's permanent record.
- 6. Degrees awarded posthumously will be noted on the commencement program as a "Associate Degree Awarded Posthumously". The student's diploma or certificate will be

BP/AP XXXX - 1

Posthumous Degrees

released or mailed to the person legally authorized to manage the deceased student's affairs. The posthumous nature of the award will be indicated on the diploma and in the student's official transcript. Any fees associated with the administration of the posthumous degree or certificate of attendance shall be waived.

Posthumous Degrees

BP 4111

Reference:

The purpose of this policy is to recognize the academic achievement of the deceased student, and to extend to the college community, family, and friends of the student an opportunity to share in his/her academic success at Shasta College.

Posthumous degrees may be awarded at commencement or some other equally appropriate time. The names of persons receiving posthumous degrees must be approved by the Board.

The Superintendent/President shall establish procedures and criteria for the award of posthumous degrees.

Academic Renewal

Reference: Title 5, Section 55046

In accordance with Title 5, Section 55046 the following policy regarding Academic renewal permits removing "D" and "F" grades from grade point calculation when the student's previous academic performance is not reflective of the student's recent performance. Students may petition to have their academic record reviewed for academic renewal of substandard academic performance under the following conditions:

- The maximum amount of course work that may be academically renewed is 30 semester units of D and F grades, within two consecutive academic years.
- A minimum of two years must have elapsed since the course work to be renewed was completed.
- 3. To apply for academic renewal, the student must have completed either 15 semester units with at least a 3.0 grade point average (G.P.A.) or 24 semester units with a G.P.A. of at least 2.5 since the course(s) to be renewed.
- 4. Courses which have been excluded by Academic Renewal may not be used in the fulfillment of requirements for a degree or certificate at Shasta College. Courses, which were used in the past to fulfill the requirements of a degree or certificate already granted by any institution, may not be excluded by Academic Renewal.
- 5. Units that have been excluded by Academic Renewal cannot be reinstated.
- Courses, which have been excluded by Academic Renewal, may not be used to fulfill prerequisites.
- The student's permanent record will be annotated in such a way that all work remains legible, ensuring a true and complete academic history. However, the grades will no longer be included in the computation of the student's G.P.A.

Academic renewal procedures may not conflict with the District's obligation to retain and destroy records or with the instructor's ability to determine a student's final grade.

The above policy is adopted for students who need a means of tempering their previous academic record so they may successfully accomplish an academic goal.

The administration, relying primarily upon the advice of the Academic Senate, shall develop procedures to be followed by students in filing petitions applied to this regulation and those procedures shall stipulate the officers and/or personnel responsible for implementing the procedures or regulations.

The District shall rely primarily upon the advice of the Academic Senate in making any changes to this regulation, but shall not adopt any regulation or procedure which conflicts with Education Code Section 76224 or Chapter 2.5 of Division 10 of Title 5.

Academic Renewal

BP 4240

Reference: Title 5 Section 55046

Previously recorded substandard academic performance may be disregarded if it is not reflective of a student's demonstrated ability. The Superintendent shall establish procedures that provide for academic renewal.

Dismissal and Readmission

AP 4255

Reference: Title 5 Sections 55033 and 55034

Standards for Dismissal

A student who is on academic probation shall be subject to dismissal if the student has earned a cumulative grade point average of less than 2.0 in all units attempted in each of three consecutive semesters. A student who has been placed on progress probation shall be subject to dismissal if the percentage of units in which the student has been enrolled for which entries of "W," "I," "NC," and "NP" are recorded in at least three consecutive semesters reaches or exceeds 50 percent.

Dismissal Letter

The letter notifying the student that he/she is subject to dismissal will cover, at a minimum, reference to this procedure, explanation of what dismissal means, procedure for reinstatement, and procedure to appeal the dismissal.

Appeal of Dismissal

The student has the right to appeal a proposed dismissal action if the student feels that facts exist that warrant an exception to the dismissal action. The student must file the written petition of appeal to the Admissions and Records Office designated on the dismissal letter that was mailed. If the student fails to file a written petition by the designated due date, the student waives all future rights to appeal the dismissal action. It is the student's responsibility to indicate on the petition a clear statement of the grounds on which continued enrollment should be granted and to provide evidence supporting the reasons. Petitions will be reviewed by the Scholastic Standards Committee.

If the student's appeal is approved, he/she will be continued on special probation until he/she regains good academic standing.

The decision of the Scholastic Standards Committee will be communicated to the student in writing by a designee of the Admissions and Records Office. Admissions and Records will notify the student of his/her action within 30 days of receipt of the

AP 4255 - 1

Dismissal and Readmission

student's appeal. The student may appeal the decision of the Scholastic Standards Committee in writing to the Admissions and Records Office within 10 working days of the date of notification of the decision by the appropriate designee. The decision of the Admissions and Records Office is final.

If the dismissal appeal is granted, the student will complete a Readmissions Contract for Dismissed Students and will be continued on special probation for an additional semester. At the end of the additional semester, the student's academic record will again be evaluated to determine whether the student may be removed from probation, should be dismissed, or should be continued on probation.

The Readmission Contract for Dismissed Students requires that students on special probation list courses to be completed in the subsequent term and agree to pass all courses with grades of "C" or better and not withdraw with a grade of "W." Students on a special probation contract are subject to dismissal for one or more semesters if the provisions of their contract are not satisfied. Special probation students in violation of their contract are subject to administrative withdrawal of subsequent term of enrollment upon verification of grades earned for the previous contracted term.

Standards for Evaluating Appeals

Dismissal appeals may be granted under the following circumstances:

- If the dismissal determination is based on the academic record for one semester in which the record does not reflect the student's usual level of performance due to accident, illness, or other circumstances beyond the control of the student. Verification should be submitted with the appeal.
- The student enrolls in a corrective program designed to assist him/her in improving academic skills, such as obtaining academic counseling and/or limiting course load.
- When there is evidence of significant improvement in academic achievement.

Readmission after Dismissal

In considering whether or not students may be readmitted after a dismissal and a one or more semester absence, the following criteria should be considered:

AP 4255 - 2

Dismissal and Readmission

- Documented extenuating circumstances.
- Marked improvement between the semesters on which disqualification was based.
- Semesters on which disqualification was based were atypical of past academic performance.
- Formal or informal educational experiences since completion of semesters on which disgualification was based.
- Improved GPA as a result of grade changes, fulfillment of incomplete courses, or academic renewal.

Probation, Dismissal and Readmission

BP 4250

Commented [TN1]: Previously this read 55035 but CCLC re-

quires it as 55034.

Reference: Education Code Section 70902(b)(3); Title 5, Sections 55030-55034

Probation

<u>Academic Probation</u>. A student who has attempted at least 12 semester units shall be placed on academic probation if the student has earned a cumulative grade point average below 2.0 in all units.

Progress Probation. A student who has attempted at least 12 units shall be placed on progress probation when the percentage of all units in which a student has enrolled and for which entries of "W", "I", and "NP," are recorded reaches or exceeds 50 percent.

A student who is placed on probation may submit an appeal in accordance with the procedures to be established by the Superintendent/President.

A student on academic probation shall be removed from probation when the student's accumulated grade point average is 2.0 or higher.

A student on progress probation shall be removed from probation when the percentage of units in the categories of "W," "I," "NC," and "NP" drops below 50 percent.

Dismissal

A student who is on academic probation shall be subject to dismissal if the student has earned a cumulative grade point average of less than 2.0 in all units attempted in three consecutive semesters.

A student who is subject to dismissal may submit a written appeal in compliance with administrative procedures.

Readmission

A student who has been dismissed may request reinstatement. Readmission may be granted, denied, or postponed according to criteria contained in administrative procedures.

The Superintendent/President or designee shall develop procedures for the implementation of this policy that comply with the Title 5 requirements.

See Administrative Procedure 4250 and 4255

Board Approved 3/12/03 Academic Senate Approved 11/08/04 Board Approved Revisions 2/09/05 Reviewed by the Board Ad Hoc Committee on Policy 11/14/07 Board Approved Revisions 1/16/08 Reviewed by the Board Ad Hoc Committee on Policy 11/12/08 Board Approved Revisions 4/09/14

BP 4250 - 1

Probation

AP 4250

Reference: Title 5 Sections 55030 through 55034

Notification of Probation

Each student is entitled to be notified of his/her academic difficulty and the availability of college support services to respond to the academic difficulty before the student is dismissed. Notification will consist, at a minimum, of the following:

- At the end of the semester in which the student's cumulative grade point average falls below 2.0 in all units attempted, a notice of probation shall be sent to the student informing him/her of the probation.
- If a percentage of a student's recorded entries of, "W," "I," "NC," and "NP" reaches or exceeds 50% of all units in which a student has enrollment, the student shall be placed on progress probation.
- At the end of the third semester of which the student is on academic and/or progress probation, a notice shall be sent to the student informing him/her that he/she is subject to dismissal.

Probationary Letter

The letter notifying the student of probation will cover, at a minimum, the significance of being on probation and description of the services available.

A student who is on academic probation and earns a semester grade point average of 2.0 or better shall not be dismissed as long as this minimum semester grade point average is maintained.

Residence Determination

BP 5015

Reference: Education Code Sections 68040 and 76140; Title 5, Section 54000, et seq.

Students shall be classified at the time of each application for admission or registration as a resident or nonresident student.

A resident is any person who has been a bona fide resident of California for at least one year on the residence determination date. The residence determination date shall be the day immediately preceding the first day of a semester or summer session for which the student applies to attend.

Residence classification shall be made for each student at the time applications for admission are accepted or registration occurs and whenever a student has not been in attendance for more than one semester. A student previously classified as a nonresident may be reclassified as of any residence determination date.

The Superintendent/President shall enact procedures to assure that residence determinations are made in accordance with Education Code and Title 5 regulations.

See Administrative Procedure 5015

Board Approved 4/09/03 Reviewed by the Board Ad Hoc Committee on Policy 5/13/09 Board Approved Revisions 11/11/09

Residence Determination

AP 5015

Reference: Education Code Sections 68000 et seq., 68130.5, and 68075.7; Title 5, Section 54000 et seq.; 38 U.S. Code Section 3679

1.0 Residence Classification

Residency classifications shall be determined for each student at the time of each registration and whenever a student has not been in attendance for more than one semester. Residence classifications are to be made in accordance with the following provisions:

A residence determination date is that day immediately preceding the opening day of instruction for any session during which the student proposes to attend.

A residence classification is the responsibility of the Admissions and Records Office.

Students must be notified of a residence determination within 14 calendar days of submission of application.

2.0 Student Notification

The District shall publish the residence determination date and summary of the rules and regulations governing residence determination and classification in the District catalog or addenda thereto.

- 3.0 Rules Determining Residence
 - A student who has resided in the state for more than one year immediately preceding the residence determination date is a resident.
 - A student who has not resided in the state for more than one year immediately preceding the residence determination date is a nonresident.

The residence of each student enrolled in or applying for enrollment in any class or classes maintained by this District shall be determined in accordance with the Education Code which states that every person has, in law, a residence. In determining the place of residence, the following rules are to be observed:

- Every person who is married or eighteen years of age, or older, and under no legal disability to do so, may establish residence.
- A person may have only one residence.
- A residence is the place where one remains when not called elsewhere for labor or other special or temporary purpose and to which one returns in seasons of repose.
- A residence cannot be lost until another is gained.
- The residence can be changed only by the union of act and intent.

Residence Determination

AP 5015

- A man or a woman may establish his or her residence. A woman's residence shall not be derivative from that of her husband.
- The residence of the parent with whom an unmarried minor child maintains his/her place of abode is the residence of the unmarried minor child. When the minor lives with neither parent, the minor's residence is that of the parent with whom the last place of abode was maintained, provided the minor may establish his/her residence when both parents are deceased and a legal guardian has not been appointed.
- The residence of an unmarried minor who has a parent living cannot be changed by the minor's own act, by the appointment of a legal guardian, or by relinquishment of a parent's right of control.

4.0 Determination of Resident Status

A resident is a student who has been a bona fide resident of the state for one year prior to the residence determination date. A bona fide resident is a person whose residence is in California as determined above except:

- A student who is a minor and remains in this state after the parent, who was previously domiciled in California and has established residence elsewhere, shall be entitled to retain resident classification until attaining the age of majority and has resided in the state the minimum time necessary to become a resident, so long as continuous attendance is maintained at an institution.
- A student who is a minor and who provides evidence of being entirely self-supporting and actually present in California for more than one year immediately preceding the residence determination date with the intention of acquiring a residence therein, shall be entitled resident classification until he/she has resided in the state the minimum time necessary to become a resident.
- A student who has not been an adult for one year immediately preceding the residence determination date for the semester for which the student proposes to attend an institution shall have the immediate pre-majority-derived California residence, if any, added to the post-majority residence to obtain the one year of California residence.
- A student holding a valid credential authorizing service in the public schools of this state, who is employed by a school district in a full-time position requiring certification qualifications for the college year in which the student enrolls in an institution, shall be entitled to resident classification if each student meets any of the following requirements:
- He/she holds a provisional credential and is enrolled in courses necessary to obtain another type of credential authorizing service in the public schools.

Residence Determination

- He/she holds a credential issued pursuant to Education Code Section 44250 and is enrolled in courses necessary to fulfill credential requirements.
- He/she is enrolled in courses necessary to fulfill the requirements for a fifth year of education prescribed by subdivision (b) of Education Code Section 44259.
- A student holding a valid emergency permit authorizing service in the public schools of this state, who is employed by a school district in a full- time position requiring certification qualifications for the academic year in which the student enrolls at an institution in courses necessary to fulfill teacher credential requirements, is entitled to resident classification only for the purpose of determining the amount of tuition and fees for no more than one year. Thereafter, the student's residency status will be determined under the other provisions of this procedure
- A student who is a full-time employee of the California State University, the University of California or a community college, or of any state agency or a student who is a child or spouse of a full-time employee of the California State University, the University of California or a community college, or of any state agency may be entitled to resident classification, until the student has resided in the state the minimum time necessary to become a resident.
- A student who is a natural or adopted child, stepchild, or spouse who is a dependent of a member of the armed forces of the United States stationed in this state on active duty shall be entitled to resident classification. If the member of the armed forces of the United States later transfers on military orders to a place outside this state, or retires as an active member of the armed forces of the United States, the student dependent shall not lose his/her resident classification, so long as he/she remains continuously enrolled in the District.
- A student who is a member of the armed forces of the United States stationed in this state on active duty, except a member of the Armed Forces assigned for educational purposes to a state-supported institution of higher education, is entitled to resident classification only for the purpose of determining the amount of tuition and fees. If the student later transfers on military orders to a place outside this state, the student shall not lose his/her resident classification, so long as he/she remains continuously enrolled in the District.
- A veteran who was discharged or released from at least 90 days of active service less than three years before the date of enrollment in a course commencing on or after July 1, 2015, and his/her dependents, regardless of the veteran's state of residence is entitled to resident classification.
- An individual who is the child or spouse of a person who, on or after September 11, 2001, died in the line of duty while serving on active duty as a member of the Armed Forces who resides in California and enrolls in the community college within three

Residence Determination

years of the Service Member's death in the line of duty following a period of active duty service of 90 days or more.

- A student who is a minor and resides with his or her parent in a district or territory not in a district shall be entitled to resident classification, provided that the parent has been domiciled in California for more than one year prior to the residence determination date for the semester, quarter or term for which the student proposes to attend.
- A student who is a Native American is entitled to resident classification for attendance at a community college if the student is also attending a school administered by the Bureau of Indian Affairs located within the community college district.
- A student who is a federal civil service employee and his or her natural or adopted dependent children are entitled to resident classification if the parent has moved to this state as a result of a military mission realignment action that involves the relocation of at least 100 employees. This classification shall continue until the student is entitled to be classified as a resident, so long as the student continuously attends an institution of public higher education.
- A student who resides in California and is 19 years of age or under at the time of enrollment, who is currently a dependent or ward of the state through California's child welfare system, or was served by California's child welfare system and is no longer being served either due to emancipation or aging out of the system, may be entitled to resident classification until he/she has resided in the state the minimum time necessary to become a resident.
- A student who lives with a parent who earns a livelihood primarily by performing agricultural labor for hire in California and other states, and the parent has performed such labor in this state for at least two months per year in each of the two preceding years, and the parent resides in this District and the parent of the student has claimed the student as a dependent on his state or federal personal income tax return if he/she has sufficient income to have personal income tax liability shall be entitled to resident classification.
- A student who demonstrates financial need, has a parent who has been deported or was permitted to depart voluntarily, moved abroad as a result of that deportation or voluntary departure, lived in California immediately before moving abroad, attended a public or private secondary school in the state for three or more years, and upon enrollment, will be in his or her first academic year as a matriculated student in California public higher education, will be living in California, and will file an affidavit with the District stating that he or she intends to establish residency in California as soon as possible.

Residence Determination

5.0 Right To Appeal

Students who have been classified as non-residents have the right to a review of their classification (Title 5, Section 54010 (a)). Any student, following a final decision of residence classification by the Admissions and Records Office, may make written appeal to the Superintendent/President or designee within 30 calendar days of notification of final decision by the college regarding classification.

6.0 Appeal Procedure

The appeal is to be submitted to Admissions and Records Office which must forward it to the Superintendent/President or designee within five working days of receipt. Copies of the original application for admission, the residency questionnaire, and evidence or documentation provided by the student, with a cover statement indicating upon what basis the residence classification decision was made, must be forwarded with the appeal.

The Superintendent/President or designee shall review all the records and have the right to request additional information from either the student or the Admissions Office.

Within 30 calendar days of receipt, the Superintendent/President or designee shall send a written determination to the student. The determination shall state specific facts on which the appeal decision was made.

7.0 Reclassification

A student previously classified as a non-resident may be reclassified as of any residence determination date. A residence determination date is that day immediately preceding the opening day of instruction for any session during which the student proposes to attend.

Petitions for reclassification are to be submitted to the Admissions and Records Office.

Petitions must be submitted prior to the semester for which reclassification is to be effective. Extenuating circumstances may be considered in cases where a student failed to petition for reclassification prior to the residency determination date. In no case, however, may a student receive a non-resident tuition refund after the date of the first census.

Written documentation may be required of the student in support of the reclassification request.

A questionnaire to determine financial independence must be submitted with the petition for reclassification. Determination of financial independence is not required for students who were classified as non-residents by the University of California, the California State University, or another community college District (Education Code Section 68044).

A student shall be considered financially independent for purposes of residence reclassification if the applicant meets all of the following requirements:

Residence Determination

- Has not and will not be claimed as an exemption for state and federal tax purposes by his or her parent in the calendar year prior to the year the reclassification application is made;
- Has not lived and will not live for more than six weeks in the home of his or her parent during the calendar year the reclassification application is made.

A student who has established financial independence may be reclassified as a resident if the student has met the requirements of Title 5, Sections 54020, 54022 and 54024.

Failure to satisfy all of the financial independence criteria listed above does not necessarily result in denial of residence status if the one year requirement is met and demonstration of intent is sufficiently strong.

Financial dependence in the current or preceding calendar year shall weigh more heavily against finding California residence than financial dependence in the preceding second and third calendar years. Financial dependence in the current or preceding calendar year shall be overcome only if (1) the parent on whom the student is dependent is a California resident, or (2) there is no evidence of the student's continuing residence in another state.

The Superintendent/President or designee will make a determination, based on the evidence and notify the student not later than 14 days of receipt of the petition for reclassification.

Students have the right to appeal according to the procedures above.

8.0 Non-Citizens

The District will admit any non-citizen who is 18 years of age or a high school graduate.

If non-citizens are present in the United States illegally or with any type of temporary visa, they will be classified as non-residents and charged non-resident tuition unless they meet the exceptions contained below.

If, for at least one year and one day prior to the start of the semester in question, a noncitizen has possessed any immigration status that allows him or her to live permanently in the United States and she or he meets the California residency requirements, the student can be classified as a resident.

A student who is without lawful immigration status may be classified as a resident if he or she meets the following requirements:

- high school attendance in California for three or more years;
- graduation from a California high school or attainment of the equivalent thereof;
- registration or enrollment in a course offered by the District for any term commencing on or after January 1, 2002;

Residence Determination

- completion of a questionnaire form prescribed by the Chancellor and furnished by the District of enrollment, verifying eligibility for this nonresident tuition exemption; and
- in the case of a student without lawful immigration status, the filing of an affidavit that the student has filed an application to legalize his/her immigration status, or will file an application as soon as he or she is eligible to do so.

The initial residency classification will be made at the time the student applies for admission. Students may file residency questionnaire forms through the third week of the semester to request a review of their residency status. Final residency determination is made by the Admissions and Records Office. Students may appeal the decision with the Superintendent/President or designee.

Board Reviewed 11/11/09 Reviewed by the Board's Ad Hoc Committee on Policy 9/09/15 Reviewed by the Board's Ad Hoc Committee on Policy 2/17/16 Board Reviewed Revisions 2/17/16

Instructional Materials Fees ***New, Legally Required*** AP 5031

Reference: Education Code Section 76365; Title 5 Sections 59400 et seq.

Students may be required to provide instructional materials required for a credit or non-credit course. Such materials shall be of continuing value to a student outside of the classroom setting and shall not be solely or exclusively available from the District.

Many courses require a material/instructional usage fee. Students should consult the current schedule of classes for fee amounts which are noted under the appropriate class description. Material fees are due at the time of registration and are not subject to waiver.

Required instructional materials shall not include materials used or designed primarily for administrative purposes, class management, course management, or supervision.

Where instructional materials are available to a student temporarily through a license or access fee, the student shall be provided options at the time of purchase to maintain full access to the instructional materials for varying periods of time ranging from the length of the class up to at least two years. The terms of the license or access fee shall be provided to the student in a clear and understandable manner prior to purchase.

Instructors shall take reasonable steps to minimize the cost and ensure the necessity of instructional materials.

The District will publish these regulations in each college catalog.

Definitions

"Required instructional materials" means any materials which a student must procure or possess as a condition of registration, enrollment or entry into a class; or any such material which the instructor determines is necessary to achieve the required objectives of a course.

"Solely or exclusively available from the District" means that the instructional material is not available except through the District, or that the District requires that the instructional material be purchased or procured from it. A material shall not be considered to be solely or exclusively available from the District if it is provided to the student at the District's actual cost; and 1) the instructional material is otherwise generally available, but is provided solely or exclusively by the District for health and safety reasons; or 2) the instructional material is provided in lieu of other generally available but more expensive material which would otherwise be required.

"Required instructional materials which are of continuing value outside of the classroom setting" are materials which can be taken from the classroom setting and which are not wholly consumed, used up, or rendered valueless as they are applied in achieving the required objectives of a course to be accomplished under the supervision of an instructor during the class.

AP 5031 - 1

Instructional Materials Fees______ Key Legally Required Key AP 5031

Establishing Required Materials and Related Fees

The recommended materials fee shall be reviewed by the Division Dean to ensure need and compliance with regulations. The Administrative Services Office will respond to State Chancellor's Office inquiries regarding fees.

The office of the Assistant Superintendent/Vice President of Administrative Services will submit the recommended materials fees to the Governing Board for final approval.

The schedule of classes available on MyShasta, which is updated on a regular basis and available on-line, contains the most recent information regarding instructional materials fees. Optional fees are generally collected at the Business Office or at the Admissions and Records office. Mandatory material fees are paid at the time of registration.

The lecture or laboratory faculty member will provide students with the materials covered by the fee.

Submitted by Enrollment Services 04/11/17 Cabinet 1st Reading 04/18/17

Withholding of Student Records

AP 5035

Reference: Title 5, Section 59410

The Admissions and Records Office may withhold grades, transcripts, diplomas, and registration privileges from any student or former student who fails to pay a proper financial obligation to the District. The student shall be given written notification and the opportunity to explain if the financial obligation is an error.

The definition of proper financial obligation shall include, but is not limited to: student fees; obligations incurred through the use of facilities, equipment or materials; library fines; unreturned library books; materials remaining improperly in the possession of the student; and/or any other unpaid obligation a student or former student owes to the District. A proper financial obligation does not include any unpaid obligation to a student organization.

Board Reviewed 11/11/09

Withholding of Student Records

BP 5035

Reference: Title 5, Section 59410

Students or former students who have been provided with written notice that they have failed to pay a proper financial obligation shall have grades, transcripts, diplomas, and registration privileges withheld.

See Administrative Procedure 5035

Board Approved 4/09/03 Reviewed by the Board Ad Hoc Committee on Policy 5/13/09

Student Records, Directory Information, and Privacy

AP 5040

Reference: Education Code Sections 71091 and 76200 et seq.; Title 5, Section 54600 et seq.; 20 U.S. Code Section 1232g(i) (US Patriot Act); Civil Code Section 1798.85; ACCJC Accreditation Standard II.C.8

A cumulative record of enrollment, scholarship, and educational progress shall be kept for each student.

Release of Student Records. No instructor, official, employee, or governing board member shall authorize access to student records to any person except under the following circumstances:

· Student records shall be released pursuant to a student's written consent.

Students unable to process transactions in person or via Web Advisor may designate another person to process transactions on their behalf by proxy. In compliance with, the federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 also known as FERPA or the Buckley Amendment, the student must sign a release authorizing processing of transactions by proxy. The student (not the Proxy) has the ultimate responsibility for complying with applicable requirements, policies, and deadlines, and for the timely payment of tuition and fees.

- "Directory information" may be released in accordance with the definitions in Board Policy 5040 and in accordance with federal and state laws and regulations, such as the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)- provided that no directory information shall be released regarding any student or former student when the student or former student has notified the District that the information shall not be released. To do so, the student or former student must submit the appropriate form to the college Admissions and Records Office, in accordance with college policy, requesting that some or all of the categories of directory information not be released.
- Student records shall be released pursuant to a judicial order or a lawfully issued subpoena.
 - Immediate notification to be sent via certified mail to students stating: the person, office or organization initiating the request; the nature of the records requested, the reason for requesting such records and the date we will release records.
 - Subpoena or court order to be faxed to Shasta College attorneys for review prior to release of documents.
 - Memo distributed to departments related to court order/subpoena records requested. Stating: the person, office or organization initiating the request; the nature of the records requested, the reason for requesting such records and the date we will release records.
 - o Third party information will be removed or blacked out prior to release of records.

Formatted: Font color: Blue

Student Records, Directory Information, and Privacy

AP 5040

Formatted: Font color: Blue

- Documents will be certified mailed as instructed per court order/subpoena to copying company, attorney's office or in the case of criminal matters directly to the court of hearing.
- Student records shall be released pursuant to a federal judicial order that has been issued regarding an investigation or prosecution of an offense concerning an investigation or prosecution of terrorism.
- Student records may be released to officials and employees of the District only when they have a legitimate educational interest to inspect the record. <u>Requests are made to</u> the Office of Admissions and Records who approved or denies the request based on leatimate educational interests.
- Student records may be released to authorized representatives of the Comptroller General of the United States, the Secretary of Education, an administrative head of an education agency, state education officials, or their respective designees or the United States Office of Civil Rights, where that information is necessary to audit or evaluate a state or federally supported educational program or pursuant to federal or state law. Exceptions are that when the collection of personally identifiable information is specifically authorized by federal law, any data collected by those officials shall be protected in a manner that will not permit the personal identification of students or their parents by other than those officials, and any personally identifiable data shall be destroyed when no longer needed for that audit, evaluation, and enforcement of federal legal requirements. Requests are made to the Director of Admissions and Records or Dean of Enrollment Services, who will consult with the President's office before the releasing information.
- Student records may be released to officials of other public or private schools or school
 systems, including local, county or state correctional facilities where education programs
 are provided, where the student seeks or intends to enroll or is directed to enroll. The release is subject to the conditions in Education Code 76225. The Admissions and Records office will assume the responsibility of verifying the student and processing the request.
- Student records may be released to agencies or organizations in connection with a student's application for, or receipt of, financial aid, provided that information permitting the personal identification of those students may be disclosed only as may be necessary for those purposes as to financial aid, to determine the amount of the financial aid, or conditions that will be imposed regarding financial aid, or to enforce the terms or conditions of financial aid. The Dean of Enrollment Services or Director of Financial Aid is responsible for authorizing the release of this information.
- Student records may be released to organizations conducting studies for, or on behalf
 of, accrediting organizations, educational agencies or institutions for the purpose of developing, validating, or administrating predictive tests, administering financial aid programs, and improving instruction, if those studies are conducted in such a manner as will

Student Records, Directory Information, and Privacy

AP 5040

not permit the personal identification of students or their parents by persons other than representatives of those organizations and the information will be destroyed when no longer needed for the purpose for which it is conducted. The Superintendent/President or designee is responsible for authorizing the release of this information.

- Student records may be released to appropriate persons in connection with an emergency if the knowledge of that information is necessary to protect the health or safety of a student or other persons, subject to applicable federal or state law. The Dean of Enrollment Services is responsible for releasing this information to the Security Supervisor.
- The following information shall be released to the federal military for the purposes of federal military recruitment: student names, addresses, telephone listings, dates and places of birth, levels of education, major(s), degrees received, prior military experience, and/or the most recent previous educational institutions enrolled in by the students. Written requests are forwarded to the Office of Admissions and Records, who may authorize the information to be released.

Charge for Transcripts or Verifications of Student Records.

A student/former student shall be entitled to two free copies of the transcript of his/her record or to two free verifications of various student records. Additional copies shall be made available to the student, or to an addressee designated by him/her, at a rate approved by the Board. Students may request special processing of a transcript at a rate approved by the Board.

Electronic Transcripts

The District may elect to implement a process for the receipt and transmission of electronic student transcripts contingent upon receipt of sufficient funding.

Use of Social Security Numbers

The District shall not do any of the following:

- Publicly post or publicly display an individual's social security number;
- Print an individual's social security number on a card required to access products or services;
- Require an individual to transmit his/her social security number over the internet using a connection that is not secured or encrypted;
- Require an individual to use his/her social security number to access an internet Web site without also requiring a password or unique personal identification number or other authentication devise; or
- <u>Print, in whole or in part, an individual's Require an individual to use his/her-social security number that is visible on any materials that are mailed to the individual, except those materials used for:</u>

Formatted: Font color: Blue	
Formatted: Font color: Blue	
Formative Cost solar Plus	
Formatted: Font color: Blue	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
And the second second	
Formatted: Font color: Blue	
	and the second
	1
and the second second	
5.12**	

Student Records, Directory Information, and Privacy

AP 5040

o application Application or enrollment purposes;

- o to-To establish, amend, or terminate an account, contract, or policy; or
- o to-To confirm the accuracy of the social security number.

If the District has, prior to January 1, 2004, used an individual's social security number in a manner inconsistent with the above restrictions, it may continue using that individual's social security number in that same manner only if:

- The use of the social security number is continuous;
- The individual is provided an annual disclosure that informs the individual that he/she
 has the right to stop the use of his/her social security number in a manner otherwise
 prohibited;
- The District agrees to stop the use of an individual's social security number in a manner otherwise prohibited upon a written request by that individual;
- No fee shall be charged for implementing this request; and the District shall not deny services to an individual for making such a request.
- The District shall not deny services to an individual for making such a request.

Board Reviewed 11/11/09 Board Reviewed 11/14/12 [MANDATED CHANGES] Reviewed by the Board's Ad Hoc Committee on Policy 10/08/14 Board Reviewed 11/12/14

Student Records, Directory Information, and Privacy

BP 5040

Reference: Education Code Section 76200 et seq.; Title 5, Section 54600 et seq.; 20 U.S. Code Section 1232G(i); ACCJC Accreditation Standard II.C.8

The Superintendent/President shall assure that student records are maintained in compliance with applicable federal and state laws relating to the privacy of student records.

The Superintendent/President may direct the implementation of appropriate safeguards to assure that student records cannot be accessed or modified by any person not authorized to do so.

Access to Records. Educational records shall be available for inspection and review, during normal working hours, by presently and formerly enrolled students. Where the record(s) may contain information concerning more than the inquiring student, only that part pertaining to the inquiring student may be revealed.

Any currently enrolled or former student of the District has a right of access to any and all student records relating to him or her maintained by the district.

No District representative shall release the contents of a student record to any member of the public without the prior written consent of the student, other than directory information as defined in this policy and information sought pursuant to a court order or lawfully issued subpoena, or as otherwise authorized by applicable federal and state laws.

Students shall be notified of their rights with respect to student records, including the definition of directory information contained here, and that they may limit the information.

Directory information shall include:

- Student participation in officially recognized activities and sports including weight, height
 and high school of graduation of athletic team members.
- Degrees and awards received by students, including honors, scholarship awards, athletic awards and Dean's list recognition.
- Consistent with the Solomon Amendment, Department of Defense entities may obtain certain information about currently enrolled full-time students, ages 17 and over, once per term. This information is limited to: student names, addresses, phone numbers, age, level of education, degree program currently enrolled in, degrees received for recent graduates and educational institution last enrolled in. To process this request, the college will check to see if it collects the student data and if any students and/or parents exercised their FERPA rights to withhold student information.

See Administrative Procedure 5040

Board Approved 4/11/01

Formatted: List Paragraph, No bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5", No bullets or numbering

BP 5040 - 1

Student Records, Directory Information, and Privacy Reviewed by the Board Ad Hoc Committee on Policy 5/13/09 Board Approved Revisions 11/11/09

BP 5040 - 2

BP 5040

Student Records – Challenging Content and Access Log

AP 5045

Reference: Education Code Sections 76222 and 76232; Title 5 Section 54630

Challenging Content

Any student may file a written request with the Assistant Superintendent/Vice President of Student Services or designee to correct or remove information recorded in his or her student records that the student alleges to be:

- 1) inaccurate;
- 2) an unsubstantiated personal conclusion or inference;
- 3) a conclusion or inference outside of the observer's area of competence; or
- 4) not based on the personal observation of a named person with the time and place of the observation noted.

Within 30 days of receipt of the request, the Assistant Superintendent/Vice President of Student Services or designee shall meet with the student and the employee who recorded the information in question, if any, if the employee is presently employed by the District. The Assistant Superintendent/Vice President of Student Services or designee shall then sustain or deny the allegations.

If the Assistant Superintendent/Vice President of Student Services or designee sustains any or all of the allegations, he/she shall order the correction or removal and destruction of the information. If the Assistant Superintendent/Vice President of Student Services or designee denies any or all of the allegations and refuses to order the correction or removal of the information, the student, within 30 days of the refusal, may appeal the decision in writing to the Superintendent / President. If the Superintendent / President denies any or all of the allegations and refuses to order the correction or removal of the information, the student, within 30 days of the refusal, may appeal the decision in writing to the Board of Trustees.

Within 30 days of receipt of an appeal, the Governing Board shall, in closed session with the student and the employee who recorded the information in question, determine whether to sustain or deny the allegations. If the governing board sustains any or all of the allegations, it shall order the *Superintendent/President* or his/her designee, to immediately correct or remove and destroy the information. The decision of the governing board shall be final.

If the final decision is unfavorable to the student, the student shall have the right to submit a written statement of his/her objections to the information. This statement shall become a part of the student's record until the information objected to is corrected or removed.

BP/AP XXXX - 1

Student Records – Challenging Content and Access Log

AP 5045

Whenever there is included in any student record information concerning any disciplinary action, the student shall be allowed to include in such record a written statement or response concerning the disciplinary action.

Whenever there is included in any student record information concerning any disciplinary action in connection with any alleged sexual assault or physical abuse, or threat of sexual assault, or any conduct that threatens the health and safety of the alleged victim, the alleged victim of that sexual assault or physical abuse shall be informed within three days of the results of the disciplinary action and the results of any appeal. The alleged victim shall keep the results of that disciplinary action and appeal confidential.

Access Log

A log or record shall be maintained for each student's record that lists all persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or receiving information from the record and their legitimate interests. The listing need not include any of the following:

- Students seeking access to their own records;
- Parties to whom directory information is released;
- · Parties for whom written consent has been executed by the student;
- Officials or employees having a legitimate educational interest.
- The log or record shall be open to inspection only by the student and the Assistant Superintendent/Vice President of Student Services or designee, and to the Comptroller General of the United States, the Secretary of Education, an administrative head of an education agency, and state educational authorities as a means of auditing the operation of the system.